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6o THE ANCHOR.

THE FRATERNAL BANQUET.

The little acorn has grown into a wide
spreading oak, and prophecy, as uttered by W.
A. Shields, has been fulfilled. The F. 3. now
numbers three hundred and five members and
graduates, twenty-three being the number of
active members. By becoming a member of
this society one joins not alone the active
brotherhood, but he becomes one in a fraterni-
ty which is bound together by bonds, than
which none are stronger. Some perhaps smile
as we speak of being united with F. S. gradu-
ates, who now hold positions of the highest
honor. But what does it mean when a mem-
ber of the class of '78 reaches down (by mail)
and extends to a member of the class of ‘g7
the “fraternal grip” and calls him “brother?”
What is it that causes the face of an alumnus
to brighten as you grip his hand and he recog-
nizes a “frater?"

Do you still doubt, then attend with the
writer one of F. S, informal re-union meetings,
as was enjoyed on the evening of Dec. 13, 1893
Graduates and members assembled in Frater-
nal Hall, the most cheerful society room on
the campus. Decorations were dzemed neces-
sary. Old Glory alone was conspicuous, draped
about the portrait of. the late Dr. Scott. Are
visitors and members strangers? See how vis-
itor after visitor is greeted by the members, not
by any formal introduction, but by a warm arip,
and henceforth they are on a common footing
and are fraters. Intormal is the rule in F. S.
meetings. No program is prepared and set
speeches are debarred. The usual opening ex-
ercises over, a recess is ordered, while long
tables and seats are arranged around the room.
As the company is seated, it again appears that
graduates, forgetting that their college days
are past, and members are all fraters. FElabo-
rate spreads are also forbidden. After partak-
ing of light retreshments and fruit, the tables
are cleared, and axes, hatchets, hammers, and
pieces of wood are placed before eacn person,
Nuts are placed upon the center of each table
and each one helps himself. Finally, Hon. G.
J. Diekema is asked to act as toastmaster, and
quiet reigns supreme while Prof. Kleinheksel
tells “What he Failed to See on Hallowe'en.” or
Prof. Nykerk discourses on “The Economical
Disadvantages of a Late Marriage.” Time
fails to tell of all that was done and said at the
festal board. It is unnecessary to inform those
who were absent that it was good to be there.
May the time be hastened when we shall again

assemble with delight to renew oid associations
and green memories of former years.

As the visitors were looking over the old
minute books during the course of the evening,
and again enjoying some of the former meet-
ings, the suggestion was made that the present
society endeavor to obtain the “anonymouns
papers, committee reports, or any other papers
referring in any way to the I'. S, and which
might still be in existence. Acting upon this
suggestion a committee was appointed to cor-
respond or interview all former members to
obtain such papers. Since its appointment the
committee has been doing what it could, and al-
ready among other papers, has received “The
Damascus Blade” and “The Astrologer” issued
in 1869 and 1870 respectively. It i1s expected
that every graduate will endeavor to make the
collections o IFraternal Society papers a suc-
cess. They vill be placed in the library, and
arrangements will be made so that none but
Fraternal Society members and graduates shall
have access to them.

GYMNASIUM.

At the Annual meeting of the Gymnasium
Association held Jan. 10, the following officers
were elected for the ensuing vear:

President, Jac. Van der Meulen; Sec. and
Treas., F. Mulder.

Cabinet members, G. Kooiker, M. Koster, A.
[.. Warnshuis, G. Watermuelder, and C. Spaan.

The past year in the gvmnasium has seen
some good work done, and this year we expect
will witness still greater results, though at
present the ice with its attractions continues
to allure our bovs.

At the close of the present school term a
contest will be held in which all members will
be allowed to compete. A beatiful gold medal
will be awarded for the best “all round” work.

Boys, here is a good chance to show vour

skill.  Your exertions will not be unrewarded,
even if you fail to get the medal. The physi-
cal training will do vou good. \We hope to sce
many competitors in this contest.

DE ALUMNIS.

The class of "79, consisted of six members at
the time of graduation, only three of whom
have deemed it worth while to respond to our
questions. The class can take pride in having
among their number two students of foreign
extraction. They were K. Kimura and M.
Oghimi, two native Japanese.
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Dr. E. J. De Spelder is at present located at
Drenthe, Mich., practicing medicine. After
graduating from Hope, he entered the medical
department at the University of Michigan in
the fall of the same year, and received his de-
gree of M. D. in the spring of '83. For a time
he was located at East Saugatuck, but owing
to adverse circumstances, he went on a trip
West. Here he found several good openings,
but having learned, to use his own words, that
no Western “city or hamlet was cyclone proof,”
he soon returned to his native state, and finally
settled at Drenthe, his present location.

George Niemeyer entered the Seminary at
New Brunswick, N. J., and after graduation in
the spring ot 1882, he was installed as pastor
of the Reformed church at Detroit. His sub-
sequent pastorates were as follows: Vriesland,
from 1884 to 1886; Cleveland, O., 1886 - 18g0;
Oakland, N. ], till 1893, when he became pas-
tor of his present charge, the churches of Sho-
kan and Shandahen, N. Y.

Ame Vennema also took a theological course
after he had finished his studies at Hope. His
first field of labor which he entered immediate-
ly upon graduation was New Paltz, N. Y. While
here, he undertook the authorship of the “His-
tory of the Reformed church of New Paltz, Ul-
ster county, N. Y., from 1683 to 1883, which
was published. Il.eaving his charge here, he
served the following churches in succession:
Second Ref. of Kalamazoo; Second Ref. of
Rochester, N. Y.; Ref. church of Deer Park at
Port Jervis, N. Y., and Second church of Pas-
saic, N. ]., his present charge which he has just
entered. Rev. Vennema has received calls
from several of the most prominent churches
of the Ref. denomination. He is one of Hope's
most illustrious sons, and his occasional visits
to his Alma Mater are alwayvs heartily received
by the students.

The first productions are a pamphlet en-
titied: *Is the Koran Intelligible?” and the
[.ord’s praver in Arabic, both of which have
been received by us.

J. M. Van der Meulen, ‘g1, student at Mc
Cormick Seminary, has accepted the call ten-
dered him by the Second Ref. church of Kala-
mazoo. e will enter upon his work in April.

A. Kuiper, '93. was elected president of the
newly organized Society of Enquiry of Rutgers
Seminary, New Brunswick, N. J. Mr. G. Flik-
kema, also a former student of Ilope, is treas-

urer.

J. A. De Spelder, "7o, conducted chapel ex-
ercises one morning last week.

Rev. E. Smits, 75, of Crystal Falls, Mich.,
was in town New Year's day visiting friends.

J. J. Mersen, 'g5, medical student at the Uni-
versity of Michigan spent vacation in Holland.

Rev. F. A. Force, '76, was installed as pastor
of the church at Owasco Outlet, N. Y., Janu-
ary 14.

Wm. O. Van Evk, '93, and A. Van Duren,
‘04, students of law at Ann Arbor also spent
vacation in this city.

Jas. F. Zwemer, '70, principal of the N. W,
Academy, Orange City, Ia., was in Holland the
latter part of last month.

Rev. S. M. Zwemer, '87, writes that they have
just received a printing press for their mission-
ary station at Muscat, Arabia.

Rev. A. Vennema, 79, has recently located
in Passaic, N. ., as pastor of the old Aquacka-
nonck Ref. church of that place.

Rev. J. G. Fagg, 'S81, has recently entered

upon his new charge as assistant pastor ol the
Collegiate church, New York city.

Rev. M. Kolvn, 74, after having taken a few
months of needed recreation, has returned to
his pastoral work in Orange City, Ia.

Mr. H. G. Keppel, Ph. D., '8g, instructor in
mathematics at Northwestern University, spent
vacation with his parents in Zeeland.

J. C. Groeneveld, '74, has moved from New
Holland, S. Dakota, to South Holland, 11].,
where he is pastor of a Christian Ref. church.

Rev. Jas. Ossewaarde, 'go, of Pella, lowa,
was married to Miss. Cornelia J. Den Herder
on the evening of Dec. 31. Miss Den Herder
is a graduate of the Grammar School here and
of the Female Seminary at Kalamazoo. The

Axcnor extends congratulations.

Mr. Oren S, Flannegan a former editor-in-
chief of the AxcHor was married to Miss Car-
lotta A. Spencer of Douglas, Mich., Christmas
evening at five o’clock. The couple started at
once upon a wedding trip and will be at home
in Douglas, where Mr. Flanegan is engaged as
principal of the public schools, after January
2o0th. The AxcHoRr extends congratulations.

Orange C. Flanegan brother of Oren S. also
a former editor-in-chief is an attornev-at-law
in Grand Rapids.
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